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WASHINGTON, D.C 20463 a" AUIG 6 *3J: 33

August 6, 1984

MEMORANDUM TO: The Commission

FROM: Charles N. Stee%
General Counsel

SUBJECT: MUR 1609

Attached for the Commission's review are briefs stating the
position of the General Counsel on the legal and factual issues
of the above-captioned matter. A copy of the briefs and letters
notifying the respondents of the General Counsel's intent to
recommend to the Commission a finding of probable cause to
believe was mailed on August 6 , 1984. Following receipt
of the respondents' replies to this notice, this Office will make
a further report to the Commission.

Attachments
Briefs and Letters to Respondents




‘ ATTAtHMEVT T P
BEFORE THE FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION

In the Matter of

George Miller and Alison

)
)
Friends of Congressman ) MUR 1609
)
Cartwright Brown, as Treasurer )

GENERAL COUNSEL'S BRIEF

I. STATEMENT OF THE CASE

Oon December 5, 1983, Mr. Rudy G. Rodriguez of the Mexican-
American Political Association filed a complaint with the
Commission alleging that the City of Pittsburg, California made
contributions to the Friends of Congressman George Miller (the
"Miller Committee"), using city funds, in the names of other

individuals and that certain members of the city council

permitted their names to be used to make such contributions in

violation of 2 U.S.C. § 441f. The complaint also asserts that
the City of Pittsburg, California, a municipal corporation, made
corporate contributions to the Miller Committee in violation of 2
U.S.C. § 441b(a), and that the Friends of Congressman George
Miller and its treasurer violated 2 U.S.C.

§ 441f by accepting contributions made by the City of Pittsburg,
California in the names of others.l/

By letter of December 9, 1983, the Office of General Counsel
notified the respondents of the complaint filed against them. On
December 16, 1983, the Office of General Counsel received the
response of Ms. Alison Cartwright Brown, treasurer of the Friends

of Congressman George Miller.

1/ While not specifically alleged in the complaint, the
Committee's acceptance of contributions from the City of
Pittsburg raises the additional issue of whether the Committee
violated 2 U.S.C. § 441b(a).
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On April 10, 1984, the Commission found reason to believe
that the Friends of Congressman George Miller and its treasurer,
Alison Cartwright Brown violated 2 U.S.C. § 441b(a). The
Commission found no reason to believe that the Friends of
Congressman George Miller and its treasurer, Alison Cartwright
Brown violated 2 U.S.C. § 441f. 1Interrogatories and requests for
documents were forwarded to the respondent. On April 26, 1984,
the Miller Committee responded to the reason to believe

notification.

II. LEGAL AND FACTUAL ANALYSIS

17 The facts

Based on information ascertained by the Commission in its
investigation, the facts, briefly summarized, are as follows.

The Friends of Congressman George Miller was the principal
campaign committee for.Congressman George Miller's campaign for
re-election to the House of Representatives in 1982. The Miller
Committee remains in existence having been
redesignated as the principal campaign committee for Congressman
Miller's campaign for re-election to the House of Representatives
in 1984. Alison Cartwright Brown serves as treasurer of the
Committee.

In the Spring of 1982, the Miller Committee publicized a
birthday celebration event for Congressman George Miller's 37th
birthday to be held on May 7, 1982. The celebration consisted of
a formal dinner held at the Sheraton Airport Inn in the City of

Concord,.Contra Costa County, California.




Five city councilmen requested the city manager's secretary
to make reservations for their attendance at the birthday
celebration event. The secretary executed a payment demand
signed by the city manager which was sent to the city's finance
department. The finance department issued checks which were
mailed to the Miller Committee shortly before May 7, 1982. The
checks were to cover the cost of tickets to the event.. The cost
of each ticket was $38.

The Miller Committee received two checks from the city, one
for $266 and one for $38, which were deposited on May 19, 1982.
The Committee reported the funds as contributions received from
the City of Pittsburg.

On July 14, 1982, the Clerk of the House notified the Miller
Committee that the City of Pittsburg was a corporation. On
July 15, 1982, the Miller Committee refunded $304 to the City of
Pittsburg. In a form letter accompanying the refund the Miller
Committee explained that it was returning the contribution
because it appeared to be from a corporation. The letter further
stated that due to Federal Election Commission regulations, it
was unable to accept contributions from corporations. A
handwritten addition to the form letter noted that "cities are
considered corporations under FEC law." In addition, the letter
advised the City of Pittsburg that if the Miller Committee's
assumption was incorrect, and the contribution was legal, the
city should return the contribution with a signed letter to that

effect.




208 The law applicable

The Federal Election law prohibition which has general
application to the above stated facts is 2 U.S.C. § 441lb(a).

Section 441b(a) of Title 2, United States Code prohibits a
corporation from making contributions or expenditures in
connection with any election to federal office.2/ Furthermore,
§ 441b(a) prohibits any political committee from knowingly
accepting such contributions.

Pursuant to 2 U.S.C. § 441b(b) (2), the term "contribution or
expenditure”" includes any direct or indirect payment,
distribution, loan, advance, deposit or gift of money, or any
services or anything of value to any candidate, campaign
committee or political party or organization in connection with
any election to federal office.

i o Application of the law to the facts.

Friends of Congressman George Miller responded on April 26,
1984, and indicated that the Miller Committee received the two
checks of $266 and $38 from the City of Pittsburg on May 19,
1982, and deposited them in its banking account. The Committee
also stated that it did not know at the time that it received the
contributions that cities are considered corporations. The
contributions were refunded in full on July 15, 1982 after the

Miller Committee was notified by the Clerk of the House.

2/ In Advisory Opinions 1977-32 and 1982-26 the Commission
concluded that a municipal corporation is a "corporation" for
purposes of the limitations and prohibitions of the Act. See l
Fed. Elec. Camp. Fin. Guide (CCH) 95277 and ¢5672.




In addition, the Committee submitted a copy of the Miller
Committee standard contribution screening procedures and copies
of the invitations to birthday dinners for 1979, 1980, 1981 and
1982, Each invitation stated that it was paid for by the Friends
of George Miller Committee, that a copy of the Committee's report
is filed with the Federal Election and that Federal law prohibits
corporate or union contributions,

Although the Miller Committee had established screening
procedures and contends that it did not knowingly accept a
corporate contribution in fact it accepted two checks, in the
amounts of $266 aﬁd $38 from the City of Pittsburg. The Miller
Committee refunded the checks sent by the City of Pittsburg after
notification by the Clerk of the House. Although, this may be
mitigating factor it does not nullify the fact that the Miller
Committee accepted and negotiated the checks, thereby accepting a
corporate contribution. Therefore, the Office of General Counsel
recommends that the Miller Committee violated 2 U.S.C. § 441lb(a).

In conclusion, the facts indicate that the annual birthday
party was a campaign fundraising event. The invitations or
response cards stated the birthday party was a function of the
Miller Committee and that corporate contributions were
impermissible. The City of Pittsburg gave a corporate
contribution to the Miller Committee. Only after notification of
the Clerk of the House did the Miller Committee return the

corporate contribution to the City of Pittsburg. Therefore, the




Office of General Counsel recommends finding probable cause to

believe that the Friends of Congressman George Miller violated 2

U.S.C. § 441b(a) for accepting a corporate contribution.

III. GENERAL COUNSEL'S RECOMMENDATION:

1k, Find probable cause to believe that Friends of Congressman
George Miller and its treasurer, Alison Cartwright Brown,
violated 2 U.S.C. § 441b(a) by accepting corporate

contributions from the City of Pittsburg.

es N, Steele
General Counsel




FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20463

August 6, 1984

Alison Cartwright Brown, Treasurer
Friends of Congressman George Miller
145 Park Place

Richmond, Virginia 94801

RE: MUR 1609
Friends of Congressman
George Miller

Dear Ms. Brown:

Based on a complaint filed with the Commission on October 7,
1983, and information supplied by your client the Commission
determined on April 10, 1984, that there was reason to believe
that Friends of Congressman George Miller and you, as treasurer,
had violated 2 U.S.C. § 441b(a), a provision of the Federal
Election Campaign Act of 1971, as amended ("the Act") and
instituted an investigation of this matter.

After considering all the evidence available to the
Commission, the Office of the General Counsel is prepared to
recommend that the Commission find probable cause to believe that
a violation has occurred.

Submitted for your review is a brief stating the position of
the General Counsel on the legal and factual issues of the case.
Within fifteen days of your receipt of this notice, you may file
with the Secretary of the Commission a brief (10 copies if
possible) stating your position on the issues and replying to the
brief of the General Counsel. (Three copies of such brief should
also be forwarded to the Office of General Counsel, if possible.)
The General Counsel's brief and any brief which you may submit
will be considered by the Commission before proceeding to a vote
of probable cause to believe a violation has occurred.

If you are unable to file a responsive brief within 15 days,
you may submit a written request to the Commission for an
extension of time in which to file a brief. The Commission will
not grant any extensions beyond 20 days.




&
Alison Cartwright Brown, Treasurer
Fage 2

A finding of probable cause to believe requires that the
Office of General Counsel attempt for a period of not less than

thirty, but not more than ninety, days to settle this matter
through a conciliation agreement.

Should you have any questions, please contact Martha Romney,
the staff member assigned to handle this matter . .n
523-4000.

\N g

General Counsel

Enclosure
Brief

cc: Congressman George Miller




BEFORE THE FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION

In the Matter of )

City of Pittsburg, California ) MUR 1609

GENERAL COUNSEL'S BRIEF

I. STATEMENT OF THE CASE
On December 5, 1983, Mr. Rudy G. Rodriguez of the Mexican-

American Political Association filed a complaint with the

Commission alleging that the City of Pittsburg, California made

contributions to the Friends of Congressman George Miller (the
"Miller Committee"), using city funds, in the names of other
individuals and that certain members of the city council
permitted their names to be used to make such contributions in
violation of 2 U.S.C. § 441f. The complaint also asserts that
the City of Pittsburg, California, a municipal corporation, made
corporate contributions to the Miller Committee in violation of 2
U.S.C. § 441b(a), and that the Friends of Congressman George
Miller and its treasurer violated 2 U.S.C.

§ 441f by accepting contributions made by the City of Pittsburg,

California in the names of others.l/

1/ While not specifically alleged in the complaint, the
Committee's acceptance of contributions from the City of
Pittsburg raises the additional issue of whether the Committee
violated 2 U.S.C. § 441b(a).




By letter of December 9, 1983, the Office of General Counsel
notified the respondents of the complaint filed against them. On
January 30, 1984, City Attorney John R. Shaw responded on behalf
of the City of Pittsburg, California, and Pittsburg City Council
Members Downing, Quesada, Rives, Siino, Detorres.

On April 10, 1984, the Commission found reason to believe
that the City of Pittsburg, California violated 2 U.S.C.

§ 441b(a) and 2 U.S.C. § 441f, that Councilmen Joseph S. Siino,
Joseph Detorres, Ralph Downing, Frank R. Quesada and Ronald P.
Rives violated 2 U.S.C. § 441f. Interrogatories and requests for
documents were forwarded to the respondents.

On June 1, 1984, the Commission received a response from the
city attorney of Pittsburg, California responding on behalf of
the City of Pittsburg and the city councilmen. 1In addition,:
copies of the checks jssued by the City of Pittsburg during 1982
to Congressman George Miller and checks signed by the City of
Pittsburg to Councilmen Siino, Detorres, Downing, Quesada and
Rives were submitted. 1In the letter the city attorney indicated
that the City of Pittsburg desired to follow the formal
conciliation procedure. In a follow-up conversation with the
city attorney on June 14, 1984, he indicated that in his letter
of June 14, he was not requesting to enter into pre-probable

cause conciliation.




II. LEGAL AND FACTUAL ANALYSIS
1. The facts

Based on information ascertained by the Commission in its
investigation, the facts, briefly summarized, are as follows.

The Friends of Congressman George Miller was the principal
campaign committee for Congressman George Miller's campaign for
re-election to the House of Representatives in 1982. The Miller
Committee remains in existence having been
redesignated as the principal campaign committee for Congressman
Miller's campaign fc: re-election to the House of Representatives
in 1984. Alison Cartwright Brown serves as treasurer of the
Committee.

In the Spring of 1982, the Miller Committee publicized a
birthday celebration event for Congressman George Miller's 37th
birthday to be held on May 7, 1982. The celebration consisted of
a formal dinner held at the Sheraton Airport Inn in the City of
Concord, Contra Costa County, California.

Five city councilmen requested the city manager's secretary
to make reservations for their attendance at the birthday
celebration event. The secretary executed a payment demand
signed by the city manager which was sent to the city's finance
department. The finance department issued checks which were
mailed to the Miller Committee shortly before May 7, 1982. The
checks were to cover the cost of tickets to the event. The cost

of each ticket was $38.
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The Miller Committee received two checks from the city, one
for $266 and one for $38, which were deposited on May 19, 1982.
The Committee reported the funds as contributions received from
the City of Pittsburg.

On July 14, 1982, the Clerk of the House notified the Miller
Committee that the City of Pittsburg was a corporation. On
July 15, 1982, the Miller Committee refunded $304 to the City of
Pittsburg. In a form letter accompanying the refund the Miller
Committee explained that it was returning the contribution
because it appeared to be from a corporation. The letter further
stated that due to Federal Election Commission regulations, it
was unable to accept contributions from corporations. A
handwritten addition to the form letter noted that "cities are
considered corporations under FEC law." 1In addition, the letter
advised the City of Pittsburg that if the Miller Committee's
assumption was incorrect, and the contribution was legal, the
city should return the contribution with a signed letter to that
effect. Otherwise, the form letter went on to state, the city
should replace the city check with a personal check or a
political action committee check.

On receipt of the above-referenced letter, the city
manager's secretary phoned each of the councilmen to explain that
the city check had been returned and to request that they make
out personal checks to the Miller Committee. Each councilman was
told he would be reimbursed for the expense. Individual checks
were made out_and each councilman was subsequently reimbursed by

the City of Pittsburg. 1In its 12 Day Pre-Primary Election Report




for the period October 1 through October 13, 1982, the Miller
Committee lists a $76 contribution received from Joseph and
Alamay Siino, a $38 contribution from Joseph and Terri Detorres,
a $76 contribution from Ralph and Beulah Downing, a $38
contribution from Frank and Eleanor Quesada, and a $76
contribution from Ronald P. Rives.

25 The law applicable

There are two Federal Election law prohibitions which have
general application to the above stated facts, 2 U.S.C. § 441b(a)
and § 441f.

Section 441b(a) of Title 2, United States Code prohibits a
corporation from making contributions or expenditures in
connection with any election to federal office.2/ Furthermore,

§ 441b(a) prohibits any political committee from knowingly
accepting such contributions.

Pursuant to 2 U.S.C. § 441b(b) (2), the term "contribution or
expenditure" includes any direct or indirect payment,
distribution, loan, advance, deposit or gift of money, or any
services or anything of value to any candidate, campaign
committee or political party or organization in connection with

any election to federal office.

2/ In Advisory Opinions 1977-32 and 1982-26 the Commission
concluded that a municipal corporation is a "corporation" for
purposes of the limitations and prohibitions of the Act. See 1l
Fed. Elec. Camp. Fin. Guide (CCH) 95277 and 95672.
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2 U.S.C. § 44lf.prohibits a person from making a
contribution in the name of another person or knowingly
permitting his name to be used to effect such a contribution.
Furthermore § 441f prohibits a person from knowingly accepting a
contribution made by one person in the name of another person.

Pursuant to 2 U.S.C. § 431(11l) the term "person”" includes an
individual, partnership, committee, association, corporation,
labor organization or any other organization or group of persons.
3. Application of the law to the facts.

The city attorney for the City of Pittsburg responded on
behalf of the City of Pittsburg and the city councilmen by
raising as a threshold defense the definition of "contribution”
as set forth in 2 U.S.C. § 431(8) (A). This section provides
that:

"The term.'contribution' includes- [i] any
gift, subscription, loan advance or deposit
of money or anything of value made by any
person for the purpose of influencing any

election for federal office;" (emphasis
added)

The city attorney argues that the payment of monies by city
councilmen or the city to the Miller Committee should not be 4
treated as "contributions" as defined above.

The city attorney states that the legal definition of
contribution impliedly requires the presence of intent by the
donor that the purpose of the payment be devoted to influencing
the outcome of a federal election. 1In support of this

interpretation, the city attorney cites to Federal Election

Commission v, California Medical Association, 502 F. Supp. 196




(E)

(1980); U.S. v. National Committee for Impeachment, 469 F. 24

1139 (1972) and U.S. v. Hankin, 607 F. 24. 611 (1979).

The city attorney maintains that the councilmen and city
manager did not understand the birthday event to be a campaign
fundraiser, but rather, a social event affording the opportunity
for local politicians to meet with their legislator. According
to the city attorney's response, the event was not expressly
advertised as a campaign fundraiser to raise funds to influence
congressional elections. While the city attorney does not cite
to any statutory or regulatory authority, it is the position of
his clients that the Miller Committee bears a responsibility to
clearly make known to the public that it is treating the birthday
party as a campaign event and that the funds which it solicits
will be used directly to influence the candidates election to
office.

A second line of defense raised by the city attorney is that
2 U.S.C. § 441f requires that persons have knowledge that their
names are to be used to effect a campaign contribution in the
name of another person. The city attorney maintains that the
§ 441f prohibition was not violated by the councilmen in that
they did not have knowledge that their names were to be used to
effect a campaign contribution in the name of another person.
The city attorney asserts that the public associated the Miller
Committee with the single purpose of a birthday event -- not an

election. According to the city attorney, the annual birthday
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tradition is conducted without regard to pending federal
elections. The city attorney further states that the birthday
party has been an annual affair extending back over several
years. According to the response, it has been a customary
practice for city councilmen to attend those birthday dinners.
Their attendance at such parties is viewed by the city as part of
the councilmen's normal city duties in representing the interests
of the City of Pittsburg.

It is the view of this Office that the defense of the City
of Pittsburg and the councilmen is not substantiated by the facts
in this matter. First, the invitations themselves stated that
the birthday event was a function of the Miller Committee and
that corporate and labor union contributions were prohibited.
Second, the facts make clear that on July 15, 1982, the city was
made aware that the Miller Committee was treating the birthday
party as a campaign event. On this date the Committee refunded
the city $304 and put the city on notice that the Committee was
treating the funds as contributions. The notice further advised
that contributions from corporations are prohibited by Federal
Election Commission regulations.

While the city attorney admits that the Miller Committee's
notice of July 15, 1983, was received, he argues that no one,
other than the city manager's secretary, had knowledge of the
content of this letter. However, at the very least the city

councilmen knew that the Miller Committee would not accept

paqunt_from the city. They were also asked to draw checks on

their personal accounts and were told that they would later be
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reimbursed by the city. Just because the councilmen may not have
seen the Miller Committee's letter does not exculpate them from
their actions.

The claim that neither the city nor its councilmen
understood the birthday party to be a fundraising event for
Congressman Miller's campaign is untenable. All checks issued by
the city and the councilmen were made payable to Friends of
Congressman George Miller, the candidate's principal campaign
committee. The councilmen, with close political ties, surely had
notice that Congressman Miller was running for re-election and
their issuance of checks to Congressman Miller's principal
campaign committee should have clued them to the fact that they
were making contributions or at least should have raised
guestions concerning the use to which their monies would be put.
Such knowledge combined with the knowledge that they would
receive reimbursement from the city establishes a violation of 2
UL SRE. Sy 4dLL,

In conclusion, the facts indicate that the annual birthday
party was a campaign fundraising event. The invitations or
response cards stated the birthday party was a function of the
Miller Committee and that corporate contributions were
impermissible. The City of Pittsburg gave a corporate
contribution to the Miller Committee. The Miller Committee
returned the corporate contribution to the City of Pittsburg.

Whereupon, the city councilmen submitted their personal checks to




®
("’ - 10 -
the Miller Committe and then were reimbursed by the City of
Pittsburg. Therefore, the Office of General Counsel recommends
finding probable cause to believe that the City of Pittsburg
violated 2 U.S.C. § 441lb(a) for making a corporate contribution
and violated 2 U.S.C. § 441f for making a contribution in the
name of another and that the city councilmen violated 2 U.S.C.
§ 441f for permitting their names to be used to effect such a
contribution.
III. GENERAL COUNSEL'S RECOMMENDATIONS:
1o Find probable cause to believe that the City of Pittsburg,
California, a municipal corporation, violated 2 U.S.C.
§ 441b(a) by making corporate contributions to the Friends
of Congressman George Miller.
Find probable cause to believe the the City of Pittsburg,
California violated 2 U.S.C. § 441f by making contributions
in the name of other persons to the Friends of Congressman

George Miller.

| R T E

General Counsel

es¥YN, ‘Steele




FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20463

August 6, 1984

John R. Shaw, Esquire

Office of City Attorney

P.0O. Box 1518

2020 Railroad Avenue
Pittsburg, California 94565

RE: MUR 1609
City of Pittsburg, California

Dear Mr. Shaw:

Based on a complaint filed with the Commission on October 7,
1983, and information supplied by your client the Commission
determined on April 10, 1984, that there was reason to believe
that your client had violated 2 U.S.C. § 441b(a) and 2 U.S.C.

§ 441f, provisions of the Federal Election Campaign Act of 1971,
as amended ("the Act") and instituted an investigation of this
matter.

After considering all the evidence available to the
Commission, the Office of the General Counsel is prepared to
recommend that the Commission find probable cause to believe that
a violation has occurred.

Submitted for your review is a brief stating the position of
the General Counsel on the legal and factual issues of the case.
Within fifteen days of your receipt of this notice, you may file
with the Secretary of the Commission a brief (10 copies if
possible) stating your position on the issues and replying to the
brief of the General Counsel. (Three copies of such brief should
also be forwarded to the Office of General Counsel, if possible.)
The General Counsel's brief and any brief which you may submit
will be considered by the Commission before proceeding to a vote
of probable cause to believe a violation has occurred.

If you are unable to file a responsive brief within 15 days,
you may submit a written request to the Commission for an
extension of time in which to file a brief. The Commission will
not grant any extensions beyond 20 days.
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John R. Shaw, Esquire
Page 2

A finding of probable cause to believe requires that the
Office of General Counsel attempt for a period of not less than
thirty, but not more than ninety, days to settle this matter
through a conciliation agreement.

Should you have any questions, please contact Martha Romney,
the staff member assigned to handle this matter, at (202)
523-4000.

: es N. Steele
General Counsel

Enclosure
Brief




BEFORE THE FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION

In the Matter of )

)
City Councilman Frank R. Quesada MUR 1609

GENERAL COUNSEL'S BRIEF

I. STATEMENT OF THE CASE

On December 5, 1983, Mr. Rudy G. Rodriguez of the Mexican-
American Political Association filed a complaint with the
Commission alleging that the City of Pittsburg, California made
contributions to the Friends of Congressman George Miller (the
"Miller Committee"), using city funds, in the names of other
individuals and that certain members of the city council
permitted their names to be used to make such contributions_in
violation of 2 U.S.C. § 441f. The complaint also asserts that
the City of Pittsburg, California, a municipal corporation, made
corporate contributions to the Miller Committee in violation of 2
U.S.C. § 441b(a), and that the Friends of Congressman George
Miller and its treasurer violated 2 U.S.C.
§ 441f by accepting contributions made by the City of Pittsburg,

California in the names of others.l/

1/  wWhile not specifically alleged in the complaint, the
Committee's acceptance of contributions from the City of
Pittsburg raises the additional issue of whether the Committee
violated 2 U.S.C. § 441b(a).
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By letter of December 9, 1983, the Office of General Counsel
notified the respondents of the complaint filed against them. On
January 30, 1984, City Attorney John R. Shaw responded on behalf
of the City of Pittsburg, California, and Pittsburg City Council
Members Downing, Quesada, Rives, Siino, Detorres.

On April 10, 1984, the Commission found reason to believe
that the City of Pittsburg, California violated 2 U.S:C.

§ 441b(a) and 2 U.S.C. § 441f, that Councilmen Joseph S. Siino,
Joseph Detorres, Ralph Downing, Frank R. Quesada and Ronald P.
Rives violated 2 U.S.C. § 441f. Interrogatories and requests for
documents were forwarded to the respondents.

On June 1, 1984, the Commission received a response from the
city attorney of Pittsburg, California responding on behalf of
the City of Pittsburg and the city councilmen. 1In addition,
copies of the checks issued by the City of Pittsburg during 1982
to Congressman George Miller and checks signed by the City of
Pittsburg to Councilmen Siino, Detorres, Downing, Quesada and
Rives were submitted. 1In the letter the city attorney indicated
that the City of Pittsburg desired to follow the formal
conciliation procedure. 1In a follow-up conversation with the
city attorney on June 14, 1984, he indicated that in his letter
of June 14, he was not requesting to enter into pre-probable

cause conciliation.




II. LEGAL AND FACTUAL ANALYSIS
1°9 The facts

Based on information ascertained by the Commission in its
investigation, the facts, briefly summarized, are as follows.

The Friends of Congressman George Miller was the principal
campaign committee for Congressman George Miller's campaign for
re-clection to the House of Representatives in 1982. The Miller
Committee remains in existence having been
redesignated as the principal campaign committee for Congressman
Miller's campaign for re-election to the House of Representatives
in 1984. Alison-Cartwright Brown serves as treasurer of the
Committee.

In the Spring of 1982, the Miller Committee publicized a
birthday celebration event for Congressman George Miller's 37th
birthday to be held on May 7, 1982. The celebration consisted of
a formal dinner held at the Sheraton Airport Inn in the City of
Concord, Contra Costa County, California.

Five city councilmen requested the city manager's secretary
to make reservations for their attendance at the birthday
celebration event. The secretary executed a payment demand
signed by the city manager which was sent to the city's finance
department. The finance department issued checks which were
mailed to the Miller Committee shortly before May 7, 1982. The
checks were to cover the cost of tickets to the event. The cost

of each ticket was $38.
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The Miller Committee received two checks from the city, one
for $266 and one for $38, which were deposited on May 19, 1982,
The Committee reported the funds as contributions received from
the City of Pittsburg. T

On July 14, 1982, the Clerk of the House notified the Miller
Committee that the City of Pittsburg was a corporation. On
July 15, 1982, the Miller Committee refunded $304 to the City of
Pittsburg. In a form letter accompanying the refund the Miller
Committee explained that it was returning the contribution
because it appeared to be from a corporation. The letter further
stated that due to Federal Election Commission regulations, it
was unable to accept contributions from corporations. A
handwritten addition to the form letter noted that "cities are
considered corporations under FEC law." In addition, the letter
advised the City of Pittsburg that if the Miller Committee's
assumption was incorrect, and the contribution was legal, the
city should return the contribution with a signed letter to that
effect. Otherwise, the form letter went on to state, the city
should replace the city check with a personal check or a
political action committee check.

On receipt of the above-referenced letter, the city
manager's secretary phoned each of the councilmen to explain that
the city check had been returned and to request that they make
out personal checks to the Miller Committee. Each councilman was
told he would be reimbursed for the expense. 1Individual checks
were made out.and each councilman was subsequently reimbursed by

the City of Pittsburg. 1In its 12 Day Pre-Primary Election Report




for the period October 1 through October 13, 1982, the Miller
Committee lists a $§76 contribution received from Joseph and
Alamay Siino, a $38 contribution from Joseph and Terri Detorres,
a $76 contribution from Ralph and Beulah Downing, a $38
contribution from Frank and Eleanor Quesada, and a $76
contribution from Ronald P. Rives.

2. The law applicable

There are two Federal Election law prohibitions which have
general application to the above stated facts, 2 U.S.C. § 441b(a)
and § 441f.

Section 441b(a) of Title 2, United States Code prohibits a
corporation from making contributions or expenditures in
connection with any election to federal office.2/ Furthermore,

§ 441b(a) prohibits any political committee from knowingly
accepting such contributions.

Pursuant to 2 U.S.C. § 441b(b) (2), the term "contribution or
expenditure” includes any direct or indirect payment,
distribution, loan, advance, deposit or gift of money, or any
services or anything of value to any candidate, campaign
committee or political party or organization in connection with

any election to federal office.

2/ In Advisory Opinions 1977-32 and 1982-26 the Commission
concluded that a municipal corporation is a "corporation" for
purposes of the limitations and prohibitions of the Act. See 1
Fed. Elec. Camp. Fin. Guide (CCH) 95277 and 95672.
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for the period October 1 through October 13, 1982, the Miller
Committee lists a $76 contribution received from Joseph and
Alamay Siino a $38 contribution from Joseph and Terri Detorres a
$76 contribution from Ralph and Beulah Downing a $38 contribution
from Frank and Eleanor Quesada and a $76 contribution from Ronald
P. Rives.

2. The law applicable

There are two Federal Election law prohibitions which have
general application to the above stated facts, 2 U.S.C. § 441b(a)
and § 441f.

Section 44lb(a) of Title 2, United States Code prohibits a
corporation from making contributions or expenditures in
connection with any election to federal office.2/ Furthermore,

§ 441b(a) prohibits any political committee from knowingly
accepting such contributions.

Pursuant to 2 U.S.C. § 441b(b) (2), the term "contribution or
expenditure” includes any direct or indirect payment,
distribution, loan, advance, deposit or gift of money, or any
services or anything of value to any candidate, campaign
committee or political party or organization in connection with

any election to federal office.

2/ In Advisory Opinions 1977-32 and 1982-26 the Commission
concluded that a municipal corporation is a "corporation" for
purposes of the limitations and prohibitions of the Act. See 1
Fed. Elec. Camp. Fin. Guide (CCH) 95277 and 45672.




2 U.S.C. § 441f prohibits a person from making a
contribution in the name of another person or knowingly
permitting his name to be used to effect such a contribution.
Furthermore § 441f prohibits a person from knowingly accepting a
contribution made by one person in the name ‘of another person.

Pursuant to 2 U.S.C. § 431(11l) the term "person" includes an
individual, partnership, committee, association, corporation,
labor organization or any other organization or group of persons.
3. Application of the law to the facts.

The city attorney for the City of Pittsburg responded on
behalf of the City of Pittsburg and the city councilmen by
raising as a threshold defense the definition of "contribution"
as set forth in 2 U.S.C. § 431(8) (A). This section provides
that:

"The term 'contribution' includes- [i] any
gift, subscription, loan advance or deposit
of money or anything of value made by any
person for the purpose of influencing any

election for federal office;" (emphasis
added)

The city attorney argues that the payment of monies by city
councilmen or the city to the Miller Committee should not be
treated as "contributions" as defined above.

The city attorney states that the legal definition of
contribution impliedly requires the presence of intent by the
donor that the purpose of the payment be devoted to influencing

the outcome of a federal election., In support of this

interpretation, the city attorney cites to Federal Election

Commissién V. balifornia Medical Association, 502 F. Supp. 196




O O @

(1980); U.S. v. National Committee for Impeachment, 469 F. 24

1139 (1972) and U.S. v. Hankin, 607 F. 2d4. 611 (1979).

The city attorney maintains that the councilmen and city
manager did not understand the birthday event to be a campaign
fundraiser, but rather, a social event affording the opportunity
for local politicians to meet with their legislator. According
to the city attorney's response, the event was not expressly
advertised as a campaign fundraiser to raise funds to influence
congressional elections. While the city attorney does not cite
to any statutory or regulatory authority, it is the position of
his clients that the Miller Committee bears a responsibility to
clearly make known to the public that it is treating the birthday
party as a campaign event and that the funds which it solicits
will be used directly to influence the candidates election to
office. .

A second line of defense raised by the city attorney is that
2 U.S.C. § 441f requires that persons have knowledge that their
names are to be used to effect a campaign contribution in the
name of another person. The city attorney maintains that the
§ 441f prohibition was not violated by the councilmen in that
they did not have knowledge that their names were to be used to
effect a campaign contribution in the name of another person.
The city attorney asserts that the public associated the Miller

Committee with the single purpose of a birthday event -- not an

election, According to the city attorney, the annual birthday
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tradition is conducted without regard to pending federal
elections, The city attorney further states that the birthday
party has been an annual affair extending back over several
years. According to tne response, it has been a customary -
practice for city covacilmen to attend those birthday dinners.
Their attendance at such parties is viewed by the city as part of
the councilmen's normal city duties in representing the interests
of the City of Pittsburg.

It is the view of this Office that the defense of the City
of Pittsburg and the councilmen is not substantiated by the facts
in this matter. First, the invitations themselves stated that
the birthday event was a function of the Miller Committee and
that corporate and labor union contributions were prohibited.
Second, the facts make clear that on July 15, 1982, the city was
made aware that the Miller Committee was treating the birthday
party as a campaign event. On this date the Committee refunded
the city $304 and put the city on notice that the Committee was
treating the funds as éontributions. The notice further advised
that contributions from corporations are prohibited by Federal
Election Commission regulations.

While the city attorney admits that the Miller Committee's
notice of July 15, 1983, was received, he argues that no one,
other than the city manager's secretary, had knowledge of the
content of this letter. However, at the very least the city
councilmen knew that the Miller Committee would not accept
payment from the city. They were also asked to draw checks on

their personal accounts and were told that they would later be
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reimbursed by the city. Just because the councilmen may not have
seen the Miller Committee's letter does not exculpate them from
their actions.

The claim that neither the city nor its councilmen
understood the birthday party to be a fundraising event for
Congressman Miller's campaign is untenable. All checks issued by
the city and the councilmen were made payable to Friends of
Congressman George Miller, the candidate's principal campaign
committee. The councilmen, with close political ties, surely had
notice that Congressman Miller was running for re-election and
their issuance of checks to Congressman Miller's principal
campaign committee should have clued them to the fact that they
were making contributions or at least should have raised
questions concerning the use to which their monies would be put.
Such knowledge combined with the knowledge that they would
receive reimbursement from the city establishes a violation of 2
U.S.C. § 441f.

In conclusion, the facts indicate that the annual birthday
party was a campaign fundraising event. The invitations or
response cards stated the birthday party was a function of the
Miller Committee and that corporate contributions were
impermissibie. The City of Pittsburg gave a corporate
contribution to the Miller Committee. The Miller Committee
returned the corporate contribution to the City of Pittsburg.

Whereupon, the city councilmen submitted their personal checks to
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the Miller Committee and then were reimbursed by the City of
Pittsburg. Therefore, the Office of General Counsel recommends
finding probable cause to believe that the City of Pittsburg
violated 2 U.S.C. § 441b(a) for making a corporate contribution
and violated 2 U.S.C. § 441f for making a contribution in the
name of another and that the city councilmen violated 2 U.S.C.
§ 441f for permitting their names to be used to effect such a
contribution.

III. GENERAL COUNSEL'S RECOMMENDATIONS:

Lid Find probable cause to believe that City Councilman Frank R.

Quesada violated 2 U.S.C. § 441f by knowingly permitting his

name to be used by the City of Pittsburg in making a

(] 5 eele
General Counsel




FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION

WASHINCTON, D.C. 20463

August 6, 1984

John R. Shaw, Esquire

Office of City Attorney

P.O. Box 1518

2020 Railroad Avenue
Pittsburg, California 94565

RE: MUR 1609
Councilman Frank R. Quesada

Dear Mr. Shaw:

Based on a complaint filed with the Commission on October 7,
1983, and information supplied by your client the Commission
determined on April 10, 1984, that there was reason to believe
that your client had violated 2 U.S.C. § 441f, a provision of the
Federal Election Campaign Act of 1971, as amended ("the Act") and
instituted an investigation of this matter.

After considering all the evidence available to the
Commission, the Office of the General Counsel is prepared to
recommend that the Commission find probable cause to believe that
a violation has occurred.

Submitted for your review is a brief stating the position of
the General Counsel on the legal and factual issues of the case.
Within fifteen days of your receipt of this notice, you may file
with the Secretary of the Commission a brief (10 copies if
possible) stating your position on the issues and replying to the
brief of the General Counsel. (Three copies of such brief should
also be forwarded to the Office of General Counsel, if possible.)
The General Counsel's brief and any brief which you may submit
will be considered by the Commission before proceeding to a vote
of probable cause to believe a violation has occurred.

If you are unable to file a responsive brief within 15 days,
you may submit a written request to the Commission for an
extension of time in which to file a brief. The Commission will
not grant any extensions beyond 20 days.
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John R. Shaw, Esquire
Page 2

A f£inding of probable cause to believe requires that the
Office of General Counsel attempt for a period of not less than
thirty, but not more than ninety, days to settle this matter
through a conciliation agreement.

Should you have any questions, please contact Martha Romney,
the staff member assigned to handle this matter, at (202)
523-4000.

hdrles N, Steele
General Counsel

Enclosure
Brief




BEFORE THE FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSICN

In the Matter of )

)
City Councilman Joseph Detorres MUR 1609

GENERAL COUNSEL'S BRIEF

I. STATEMENT OF THE CASE

On December 5, 1983, Mr. Rudy G. Rodriguez of the Mexican-
American Political Association filed a complaint with ghe
Commission alleging that the City of Pittsburg, California made
contributions to the Friends of Congressman George Miller (the
"Miller Committee"), using city funds, in the names of other
individuals and that certain members of the city council
permitted their names to be used to make such contributions in
violation of 2 U.S.C. § 441f. The complaint also asserts that
the City of Pittsburg, California, a municipal corporation, made
corporate contributions to the Miller Committee in violation of 2
U.S.C. § 441b(a), and that the Friends of Congressman George
Miller and its treasurer violated 2 U.S.C.
§ 441f by accepting contributions made by the City of Pittsburg,

California in the names of others.l/

37 While not specifically alleged in the complaint, the
Committee's acceptance of contributions from the City of
Pittsburg raises the additional issue of whether the Committee
violated 2 U.S.C. § 441b(a).
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By letter of December 9, 1983, the Office of General Counsel
notified the respondents of the complaint filed against them. On
January 30, 1984, City Attorney John R. Shaw responded on behalf
of the City of Pittsburg, California, and Pittsburg City Council
Members Downing, Quesada, Rives, Siino, Detorres.

On April 10, 1984, the Commission found reason to believe

that the City of Pittsburg, California violated 2 U.S.C.

§ 441b(a) and 2 U.S.C. § 441f, that Councilmen Joseph S. Siino,
Joseph Detorres, Ralph Downing, Frank R. Quesada and Ronald P.
Rives violated 2 U.S.C. § 441f. 1Interrogatories and requests for
documents were forwarded to the respondents.

On June 1, 1984, the Commission received a response from the
city attorney of Pittsburg, California responding on behalf of
the City of Pittsburg and the city councilmen. In addition, .
copies of the checks issued by the City of Pittsburg during 1982
to Congressman George Miller and checks signed by the City of
Pittsburg to Councilmen Siino, Detorres, Downing, Quesada and
Rives were submitted. 1In the letter the city attorney indicated
that the City of Pittsburg desired to follow the formal
conciliation procedure. In a follow-up conversation with the
city attorney on June 14, 1984, he indicated that in his letter
of June 14, he was not requesting to enter into pre-probable

cause conciliation.
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II. LEGAL AND FACTUAL ANALYSIS
1% The facts
Based on information ascertained by the Commission in its
investigation, the facts, briefly summarized, are as follows.
The Friends of Congressman George Miller was the principal

campaign committee for Congressman George Miller's campaign for

re-election to the House of Representatives in 1982, The Miller

Committee remains in existence having been

redesignated as the principal campaign committee for Congressman
Miller's campaign for re-election to the House of Representatives
in 1984. Alison Cartwright Brown serves as treasurer of the
Committee.

In the Spring of 1982, the Miller Committee publicized a
birthday celebration event for Congressman George Miller's 37th
birthday to be held on May 7, 1982. The celebration consisted of
a formal dinner held at the Sheraton Airport Inn in the City of
Concord, Contra Costa County, California.

Five city councilmen requested the city manager's secretary
to make reservations for their attendance at the birthday
celebration event. The secretary executed a payment demand
signed by the city manager which was sent to the city's finance
department. The finance department issued checks which were
mailed to the Miller Committee shortly before May 7, 1982. The
checks were to cover the cost of tickets to the event. The cost

of each ticket was $38.
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The Miller Committee received two checks from the city, one
for $266 and one for $38, which were deposited on May 19, 1982.
The Committee reported the funds as contributions received from
the City of Pittsburg. -

On July 14, 1982, the Clerk of the House notified the Miller
Committee that the City of Pittsburg was a corporation. On
July 15, 1982, the Miller Committee refunded $304 to the City of
Pittsburg. In a form letter accompanying the refund the Miller
Committee explained that it was returning the contribution
because it appeared to be from a corporation. The letter further
stated that due to Federal Election Commission regulations, it
was unable to accept contributions from corporations. A
handwritten addition to the form letter noted that "cities are
considered corporations under FEC law.” In addition, the letfer
advised the City of Pittsburg that if the Miller Committee's
assumption was incorrect, and the contribution was legal, the
city should return the contribution with a signed let